<B

CITY OF NOVATO
CALIFORNIA

PLANNING COMMISSION
Meeting Minutes

Monday, July 8, 2024 — 7:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Commission Present: Commissioners Crockett, Dawson, Derby, Engdahl, Havel, and
Heath

Commission Absent: Commissioner Tiernan

Staff Present: City Manager Amy Cunningham, Assistant City Manager Jessica
Deakyne, and Deputy Community Development Director Steve Marshall

B. APPROVAL OF FINAL AGENDA

Commission Action: Upon motion by Commissioner Crockett and second by
Commissioner Derby, the Planning Commission voted 6-0-0-1 via roll call to
approve the final agenda.

AYES: Commissioners Crockett, Dawson, Derby, Engdahl, Havel, and Heath
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Commissioner Tiernan

Motion Carried.

C. PUBLIC COMMENT - NONE
D. CONSENT ITEMS

D.1. DOWNTOWN NOVATO CENTER PAD BUILDING AND DRIVE-THROUGH
USE PERMIT; P2023-090
GRANT AVENUE AT 7TH STREET; APN 141-201-56

CONSIDER AND ADOPT A REVISED RESOLUTION APPROVING A USE PERMIT
FOR A DRIVE-THROUGH ASSOCIATED WITH A NEW PAD BUILDING
PROPOSED AT DOWNTOWN NOVATO CENTER; LOCATED ON THE WEST

Page | 1 Phone No. (415) 899-8900
novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213


https://novato.org/

SIDE OF SEVENTH STREET AND NORTH OF NOVATO CREEK IN THE
DOWNTOWN NOVATO CENTER, APN 141-201-56

Commission Action: Upon motion by Commissioner Derby and second by
Commissioner Crockett, the Planning Commission voted 5-1-0-1 via roll call to
approve the revised use permit resolution for the proposed drive-through at
Downtown Novato Center.

AYES: Commissioners Crockett, Derby, Engdahl, Havel, and Heath
NOES: Commissioner Dawson

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Commissioner Tiernan

Motion Carried.

D.2. APPROVE MEETING MINUTES OF JUNE 10, 2024
Commission Action: Upon motion by Commissioner Dawson and second by
Commissioner Engdahl, the Planning Commission voted 6-0-0-1 via roll call to
approve the meeting minutes of June 10, 2024.
AYES: Commissioners Crockett, Dawson, Derby, Engdahl, Havel, and Heath
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: Commissioner Tiernan
Motion Carried.
E. UNFINISHED AND OTHER BUSINESS - NONE
F. PUBLIC HEARINGS - NONE
G. GENERAL BUSINESS - NONE
H. COMMITTEE AND LIAISON REPORTS
H.1. FISCAL SUSTAINABILITY PRESENTATION
City Manager Cunningham gave a presentation regarding the fiscal condition of the City.

Commissioner Crockett asked how the budget chart changes with a sales tax increase.

City Manager Cunningham explained new revenue would bridge the gap in operating expenses —
give the ability to address infrastructure projects.

Commissioner Crockett asked why so much property tax goes to the State.
City Manager Cunningham said Proposition 13 locked the allocation of property tax revenue.
Commissioner Crockett asked if other tax or revenue sources might be considered if a sales tax

increase does not pass.

Page | 2 Phone No. (415) 899-8900
novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213


https://novato.org/

City Manager Cunningham said all potential revenue sources have been explored, such as user
fees, one time monies, and utility user taxes...most are likely more regressive than a sales tax.

Commissioner Dawson asked about the property tax rate of Mill Valley versus Novato.

City Manager Cunningham explained that when Novato incorporated in 1960 a decision was made
to keep government lean, then in the 1970’s Proposition 13 locked the low rate.

Commissioner Derby asked if all cities paid for College of Marin.
City Manager Cunningham was not sure if all cities paid the same rate for College of Marin.
Commissioner Derby asked about development impact fees.

City Manager Cunningham noted that development impact fees are a for a specific purpose, not
operations. Additionally, permit fees are only intended to off-set permit processing costs.

Commissioner Heath asked if there is any discussion of repealing Proposition 13.
City Manager Cunningham doubted Proposition 13 would be repealed.

Commissioner Engdahl explained the history of Novato’s 7% property tax rate. He asked if there is
a way to go back and say it is significantly different circumstances now, perhaps unfair to tax payers.

City Manager Cunningham said going back would involve taking money from other agencies to
increase Novato’s share.

Commissioner Engdahl noted the County of Marin has a $4M surplus. He asked if the County can
give grants to the City?

City Manager Cunningham — Yes. However grants would be one-time monies, so the current deficit
would be on-going.

Commissioner Engdahl asked about the status of the Costco gas station.
Deputy Director Marshall gave on update on the status of Costco’s gas station proposal.
Commissioner Engdahl asked about the Hamilton Trust.

City Manager Cunningham explained the Hamilton Trust monies can only be drawn down to a
certain amount - $400K to $500K can be retained as earnings for the City’s general fund.

Chair Havel opened the item for public comment.
No member of the public desired to address the Commission.
Chair Havel closed the item to public comment.

Page | 3 Phone No. (415) 899-8900
novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213


https://novato.org/

Chair Havel said he supported staff’s effort to make the organization successful. He appreciated
the marginal increase in sales tax would have a positive impact with minor drawbacks.

Commissioner Derby recognized the recent reduction in sales tax and noted the City has been
fiscally conservative.

Commissioner Dawson also noted the history of reducing the local sales tax.

*This was an informational item and no action was requested of or taken by the Planning
Commission.

l. ADJOURNMENT

The Planning Commission adjourned the meeting at 7:41 PM.

| HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing minutes were duly adopted at the Planning
Commission meeting of January 27, 2025.

/Steve Marshall/
Steve Marshall, Deputy Community Development Director

Page | 4 Phone No. (415) 899-8900
novato.org Fax No. (415) 899-8213


https://novato.org/

